From: Wilson Pipestem

To: Tracie_Stevens@ios.doi.gov; Stevens, Tracie;
Gidner, Jerold;
Subject: California Valley Miwok Tribe
Date: Thursday, March 25, 2010 2:41:18 AM
Attachments: CA Valley Miwok-Mar 24 2010 letter to Larry EchoHawk.pdf

Tracie and Jerry,

Attached is a letter following up on our meeting a few weeks ago concerning the
California Valley Miwok Tribe. Asyou’ll see, we provide additional information
about the Tribe’s formal organization, which was accomplished with the assistance
of the BIA in 1998.

I'll be forwarding you the attachments in separate emails. Please forward this
letter to Mike Smith; | don’t have his email address. Please let me know if you
have any questions or concerns.

Wilson

CVMT-2011-001997


mailto:wkpipestem@ietan.com
mailto:Tracie_Stevens@ios.doi.gov
mailto:/O=DOI/OU=First Administrative Group/cn=Recipients/cn=Tracie.Stevens
mailto:/O=DOI/OU=First Administrative Group/cn=Recipients/cn=Jerold.Gidner

CALIFORNIA VALLEY MIWOK TRIBE

1163 E. March Lane, Ste. D, PMB#812, Stockton, CA 95210 Ph: (209) 931.4567 Fax: (209) 931.4333
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March 24, 2010

VIA OVERNIGHT DELIVERY

'The Honorable Larry EchoHawk
Assistant Secretary for Indian Affairs
Department of the Interior

1849 C Street, N.W.

Washington, D.C. 20240

Dear Assistant Secretary EchoHawk:

Thank you for the opportunity to meet with representatives of the Bureau of Indian
Affairs (“BIA”) a few weeks ago. I write to follow up on several issues that were raised in that
meeting, to clarify the position of the California Valley Miwok Tribe (“Tribe™), and to provide
additional information that is relevant to your decision. Again, because of our economic
hardship, we ask for expedited consideration of this situation,

I. The Tribe is a federally-recognized Tribe

It is an undisputed fact, and the IBIA Order' reaffirms, that the California Valley Miwok
Tribe is a federally-recognized Tribe that has never been terminated or subsequently restored.’
As such, the BIA owes the Tribe a trust responsibility, which exists regardless of the Tribe’s
citizenry population or its form of government.

II. The Tribe has an existing federally-recognized membership consisting of five individuals

At our recent meeting, there seemed to be some confusion with regard to the existing
membership of the Tribe. As discussed below, the BIA has acknowledged on several occasions
that the membership of the Tribe consists of the following five individuals: Yakima Dixie, Silvia
Burley, Rashel Reznor, Anjelica Paulk and Tristan Wallace. Further, the IBIA opinion also

1

California Valley Miwok Tribe v. Pacific Regional Director Bureau of indian Affairs, Docket No. IBIA 07-
100-A (January 28, 2010).

2 See 51 IB1A 103, stating that the Tribe’s “legal status as a tribal political entity is undisputed as a matter of
Federal law.” 74 Fed. Reg. 40, 418, 40, 219.






confirms the recognized membership of the Tribe. These individuals possess the authority, as
Tribal members, to make decisions regarding various Tribal matters, including membership and
enrollment issues.

On August 5, 1998, Yakima Dixie formally acknowledged the enrollment of the
following individuals into the Tribe (then known as the Sheep Ranch Rancheria): Silvia Burley,
Rashel Reznor, Anjelica Paulk and Tristan Wallace.? Subsequently, in September 1998, Yakima
Dixie and Silvia Burley met with local BIA officials to discuss the criteria for membership in the
Tribe, and BIA officials stated that Mr. Dixie “had both the authority and broad discretion to
decide that issue.” Further, Brian Golding, BIA Tribal Operations Officer, characterized the
eligible adult members of the Tribe, Mr. Dixie, Silvia Burley and Rashel Reznor, as the “golden
members” of the Tribe and that these individuals comprised the General Council and further
stated: “{t]hey’re the body. They’re the tribe. They’re the body that has the authority to take
actions on behalf of the tribe.””

Following this meeting, on September 24, 1998, Dale Risling, then Superintendent of the
BIA Central California Agency, provided correspondence to Yakima Dixie stating that
Mr. Dixie, Silvia Burley, Rashel Reznor, Anjelica Paulk and Tristan Wallace were recognized as
enrolled members of the Tribe, and therefore “possess[ed] the right to participate in the initial
organization of the Tribe.”® As discussed in more detail below, the Tribe followed Mr. Risling’s
guidance and organized a formal, resolution form of government, whose actions were
acknowledged and ratified by the BIA.

Further, on February 4, 2000, subsequent to its notice of an internal leadership dispute
within the Tribe, the BIA provided a letter to Yakima Dixie reaffirming the five aforementioned
as the recognized members of the Tribe “enjoying all benefits, rights, and responsibilities of
Tribal membership.”” Following its meeting with Yakima Dixie regarding the Tribe’s leadership
dispute, on March 7, 2000, the BIA provided a summary of this meeting which reaffirmed the
BIA’s position that the General Council of the Tribe was comprised of Yakima Dixie, Silvia
Burley and Rashel Reznor (the then eligible adult members of the Tribe).® In this letter the BIA
further explained that as members of the Tribe with no limitations on their enrollment, these
individuals possessed full rights of membegship.9

On February 11, 2005, Principal Deputy and Acting Assistant Secretary for Indian
Affairs Michael D. Olsen dismissed an appeal filed by Yakima Dixie challenging the BIA’s
recognition of the Tribe’s membership. In rejecting Mr. Dixie’s appeal, Mr. Olsen reaffirmed
the membership of the aforementioned individuals in the Tribe and encouraged Mr. Dixie to
work with the “other tribal members.”'®
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In the recent IBIA decision, the Judge Linscheid relied upon and cited to factual evidence
that Yakima Dixie, Silvia Burley, Rashel Reznor, Anjelica Paulk and Tristan Wallace comprised
the existing membership of the Tribe, and the fact that the Tribe may not be necessarlly hmlted
to those five individuals was an enrollment issue over which the IBIA lacked Jurlsdwtlon

Taken together and individually, these documents establish this Tribe’s membership as
comprised of five individuals, The BIA and the IBIA have repeatedly reaffirmed this Tribe’s
membership and stated that these five individuals possess full rights of membership and
authority to take actions on behalf of the Tribe. In fact, there is not a single correspondence that
demonstrates the contrary. As a never-terminated, federally-recognized Tribe with an
established membership, this Tribe maintains its most basic power and authority to determine
questions of its own membership. '

1II. The Tribe is formally organized and operates under a resolution form of government

As we discussed in our meeting, the California Valley Miwok Tribe is formally organized
and operates under a resolution form of government. On November 5, 1998 the Tribe adopted
its first resolution that established its existing resolution form of government.' 3 In the resolution,
the Tribe, then known as the Sheep Ranch Band of Me-Wuk Indians, establishes the General
Council, consisting of Yakima Dixie, Silvia Burley, Rashel Reznor, Anjelica Paulk and Tristian
Wallace, to serve as the governing bedy of the Tribe, and states that this General Council shall
serve as the Tribe’s governing body until a constitution is formally adopted by the Tribe. The
resolution explicitly vests the General Council with the exclusive authority to negotiate contracts
and otherwise maintain government-to-government relations with the BIA. Although the Tribe
subsequently sought but never implemented the adoption of a formal constitution, these actions
in no way negated the establishment of the Tribe’s resolution form of government, whose actions
were acknowledged and ratified by the BIA following its formation. Furthermore, pursuant to
the explicit terms of this resolution, the General Council is the governing body of the Tribe and
is authorized to maintain government-to-government relations with the United States until such
time that a constitution is formally adopted by the Tribe or unless the resolution is rescinded
through subsequent resolution of the General Council. Because the Tribe has neither adopted a
constitution nor rescinded its organizing resolution, the General Council remains the governing
body of the Tribe and the Tribe’s resolution form of government remains intact.

The BIA should be familiar with this organizing resolution, because it was drafted by
BIA officials. In doing so, Dale Risling, Superintendent of the BIA Central California Agency,
stated that the purpose of the resolution “is to authorize the Bureau to charge expenses related to
the organization of the Tribe to the Tribe’s FY 1998 Tribal Priority Allocation Funding. '

. 51 1B3A 120; 122. Those facts within the IBIA opinion which are cited and used to support the IBIA

_]udge s decision regarding the existing Tribal metmbers are found at pages 107-110 and 112,

See e.g., Santa Clara Pueblo v. Martinez, 436 U.S. 49, 72 v. 32 (1978) (*[a] tribe’s right to define its own
membership for triba} purposes has long been recognized as central to its existence™); United States v. Wheeler, 435
U.S. 313, 322 n.18 (1978); Cherokee Intermarriage Cases, 203 U.S. 76 (1906); Roff'v. Burney, 168 U.S. 218
(1897); Smith v. Babbit, 875 F.Supp. 1353, 1360 (D.Minn.1995) (noting that “[t]he great weight of authority holds
that tribes have exclusive authority to determine membership issues™).
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Therefore, in drafting this resolution, the BIA itself envisioned the resolution as serving the
purpose of establishing a government-to-government relationship between the Tribe and the U.S.
government.

_ Finally, with regard to the issue of formal organization, there is no authority, federal or
otherwise, which holds that a tribe can only formally organize itself through the adoption of an
IRA constitution. In fact, the United States government has defined formally organized to mean
“the adoption by all members of the tribe of a formal governing document which describes the
full manner in which the tribe governs itself and includes a full definition of who its members
are.”'® Therefore, because the resolution establishing the Tribe’s resolution form of government

clearly meets this standard, the Tribe’s governing body is and has been formally organized since
at least November 5, 1998.

IV. Requested Action

The Tribe respectfully requests that the BIA restore its government-to-government
relationship with the Tribe and restore its desperately-needed federal benefits. The California
Gaming Control Commission (“CGCC”), the State government agency that is withholding the
Tribe’s funds, based its decision to cease Tribal distributions “on information recently received
from the Bureau of Indian Affairs regarding the fact that the California Valley Miwok Tribe does
not have a recognized tribal government, nor a recognized tribal chairperson . . . 1% Therefore,
the Tribe also requests that you immediately communicate to the CGCC that the five individuals
are the Tribe’s members and the Tribe’s resolution form of government is adequate for purposes
of government operations. For your convenience in communicating with the CGCC, I have

provided a draft letter which addresses the pertinent issues.!” Thank you for your consideration
in this matter.

Sincerely,

Silvia Burley
Chairperson

cc: Tracie Stevens, Senior Advisor to the Assistant Secretary
Jerry Gidner, Director for the BIA
Mike Smith, Deputy Director, Field Operations
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